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Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited (BRCL)

Reasons for delay in submission of 2"¢ Annual Report of BRCL for
the vear 2019-2020 before Vidhansabha:

e Annual Report of the company for the year 2019-2020 has to be finalized
under Companies Act, 2013 and the same has to be get audited by Statutory
Auditor under the Companies Act, 2013. After completion of Statutory
Audit of the company the same is required to get audited by C&AG Office.

e 2™ Annual Report of the company get approved in December 2020 in
Annual General Meeting of the company. Due to Covid-19 pandemic, all
offices and commercial activities were almost closed. Hence the printing
of Annual Reports was pending.

e As such, due to Administrative and other reasons mentioned hereabove,
the 2™ Annual Report for the year 2019-20 is placed before the State
legislature in upcoming session i.e. September, 2021.
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Chief Executive cer

Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited (BRCL)
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Industries & Mines Department
2nd Administrative Report of
Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited

Pursuant to Section 394(2) of the Companies Act, 2013
(for the F.Y. 2019-20)

Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited (BRCL) is a Joint Venture of Gujarat Rail
Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited, Gujarat Industrial Development
Corporation and Maruti Suzuki India Limited, incorporated under provision of the
Companies Act, 2013 on 13.12.2018.

BRCL has been incorporated to carry on the business of development , financing,
planning and implementation of Gauge Conversion of Katosan Road-Bechraji-
Chanasma-Ranuj (65 Kms) line project in the state of Gujarat.

During the year the Company has undertaken following business activities:

a)The work of Transaction Advisory has been assigned to GRIDE for processing and
awarding tenders for various activities for the project. EPC contractor for the project
has been finalized.

b)For field supervision and contract management, Project Management Consultancy
agency has been fixed.

c)Other in-house day to day works for smoother progress of project are being
undertaken by the Company.

d)Land Acquisition for the project is being coordinated with State Government and
District Administration.

e)Monitoring the progress of project for various activities.
f)Liasoning with Railways and State Government on all issues related to Project.

The management is hopeful that it will be able to accelerate its activities and speed up
implementation of the project in the forth coming years.

During the reporting period, company has incurred loss of Rs. 2,10,83,471/-

=4 .
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Additionalhief Secretary

Industfies & Mines'Department

Government of Gujarat

-~

5
7Co




BAHUCHARAJI RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

(CIN: U45101GJ2018SGC105602)

Second Annual Report
F.Y. 2019-2020

Date : 22/09/2020

Time : 12:30 Hours

Place : Block No.6, 7th Floor
Udyog Bhawan, Sector - 11,
Gandhinagar-382011, Gujarat

: Registered Office:

BAHUCHARA]JI RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
Block No. 6, 7th Floor, Udyog Bhavan, Sector-11,
Gandinagar-382011
Phone: -079-232-32728/29, Email: - info@brcl.org.in






2" Annual Report (F.Y. 2019-2020)

""'I'|||||

"CL

BAHUCHARAJI RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
(CIN: U45101GJ2018SGC105602)

INDEX
Sr. No. Particulars Page No.
1 Board of Directors 4
2. Notice of 2" Annual General Meeting 5
3. Board's Report 8
4. Independent Auditor's Report 25
5. Balance Sheet 39
6. Profit & Loss Account 41
7. Cash Flow Statement 43
8. Notes to Financial Statements 46




2" Annual Report (F.Y. 2019-2020)

Of
O

BAHUCHARA]JI RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

(CIN: U45101GJ2018SGC105602)

Board of Directors

Sr. No. Name & DIN of Director Designation

1. SHRI ASHWINIKUMAR RAJENDRAPRASAD YADAV - 06581753 Chairman
2. SHRI BAJRANG WARLI CHHAGANBHAI - 07133942 Director
3. SHRI SANTOSH KUMAR - 07854179 Director
4. SHRI DHARMESH NARHARIBHAI BRAHMBHATT - 08268559 Director
5. SHRI BATCHU VENUGOPAL - 08303687 Director
6. SHRI RA] SWARUP KAPOOR - 08303688 Director
7. SHRI ZAIGHAM ALI KHAN - 07655360 Director

Statutory Auditors

M/s Shah & Dalal

Chartered Accountants,

Ahmedabad

Bankers

Yes Bank,

Gandhinagar

Registered Office

Block No. 6, 7th Floor,
Udyog Bhavan, Sector-11,
Gandinagar-382011.
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Notice for the 2nd Annual General Meeting

NOTICE is hereby given that the Second Annual General Meeting of the Company Bahucharaji
Rail Corporation Limited will be held on Tuesday, the 22" September, 2020 at 12.30 p.m. (at
ashorter notice) through Video conferencing/OAVM mode at Block No. 6, 7th Floor, Udyog

Bhavan, Sector 11, Gandhinagar-382011 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2020 together with the reports of the Board of Directors

and Auditors and comments of Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon.

2. Toappoint Shri Bajrang Chhaganbhai Warli (DIN: 07133942), who retires by rotation as a

Director and being eligible and offers himself for re-appointment.

3. Toappoint ShriRaj Swarup Kapoor (DIN: 08303688), who retires by rotation as a Director

and being eligible and offers himself for re-appointment.

4. To authorize Board of Directors of the Company to fix the remuneration of the Statutory
Auditors of the Company appointed by the office of CAG of India for audit of accounts of
the Company for the year 2020-21.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following

Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
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ORDINARY RESOLUTION
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV

and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), Ms. Kavita Sheth
(Shah) (DIN: 08268558), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by
the Board of Directors w.e.f. 06th February, 2020 pursuant to provisions of Section 161 (1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company holds office up
to the date of this Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a Woman

Director of the Company, Nominated by Gujarat Industrial Development Corporation

(GIDC)”
Regd. Office: By order of the Board of Directors
Block No. 6, 7th Floor,
Udyog Bhavan, Sd/-
Sector-11, CHAIRMAN/DIRECTOR

Gandhinagar-382011

Date: 22"4September, 2020

NOTES:

1. Shareholders seeking any information regarding any aspect of this report are requested
to write to the company well in advance so as to enable the management to keep the

information ready.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
SPECIAL BUSINESS

Item No.5
REGULARISATION OF MS. KAVITA SHETH (SHAH) (DIN: 08268558)

Ms. Kavita Sheth (Shah) (DIN: 08268558), who has been appointed as an Additional Director of
the Company under Section 161 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 w.e.f. 06th February, 2020 holds
office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting and is eligible for appointment as a Woman

Director of the Company, Nominated by Gujarat Industrial Development Corporation (GIDC).

The Board of Directors hasrecommended the ordinary resolution for your approval.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company (including relatives of the
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel), are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise,

in this resolution.
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BAHUCHARA]JI RAIL CORPORATIONLIMITED
(CIN: U45101GJ2018SGC105602)
Reg. Office: Block No. 6,7 "Floor,Udhyog Bhavan, Sector-11,Gandhinagar, Gujarat-382011

To,
The Members,

BAHUCHARA]JI RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

Gandhinagar, Gujarat

BOARD'S REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 2" Annual Report on the business and

operations of Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited (“the Company”) and the accounts for

the financial year ended on 31°*March, 2020.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY ORHIGHLIGHTS/PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY:

The financial position of the Company for financial year ended on 31°*March, 2020is as follows:

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Revenue from Operations 0 0
Other Income 17,59,470 8,400
Total Revenue 17,59,470 8,400

Less: Total Expenses

(2,28,42,941)

(1,61,20,135)

Profit /(Loss)Before Tax

(2,10,83,471)

(1,61,11,735)

Less: Tax Expenses

0

2200

Profit /(Loss) after tax

(2,10,83,471)

(1,61,13,935)

2. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY'S WORKING DURING THE YEAR:

The Company is Presently in the Process of implementation of the project. The commercial

operation has notbegun.

a) The work of Transaction Advisory has been assigned to GRIDE for processing and

awarding tenders for various activities for the project. EPC contractor for the project has

been finalized.
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b)  Forfield supervision and contract management, Project Management Consultancy agency

hasbeen fixed.

c) Other in-house day to day work for smoother progress of project are being undertaken by

the Company.

d) Land Acquisition for the project is being coordinated with State Government and District

Administration.
e) Monitoring the progress of project for various activities.
f) Liasoning with Railways and State Government on all issues related to Project.

The management is hopeful that it will be able to accelerate its activities and speed up

implementation of the projectin the forth coming years.

3. EFFECT OF COVID-19:

The novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic is spreading around the globe rapidly. The
virus has taken its toll on not just human life, but businesses and financial markets too, the
extent of which is currently indeterminate. Entities need to carefully consider the
accounting implications of this situation and outcome of the same may be different from
the estimated at these financial Statements. The Company will continue to closely monitor

any material changes arising out of future economic conditions and impact on its activities.

4. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:

Duringthe financial year under review, there is no Change in the nature of business.
5. DIVIDEND:

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors did not recommend any

Dividend on theEquity Shares of the Company.
6. TRANSFERTO RESERVES:

During the financial year under review, Company has not transferred any amount to
General Reserve.
7. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY AND CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL, IF ANY:

The Company has allotted 10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each to the Subscribers to

the Memorandum of Association.

= = = == == == _‘T_a@rﬁ__?; _ == == = = ==
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The Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as at 31st
March, 2020 as follows:

SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Authorised Share

Rs. 2,25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Twenty Five Crore only) divided into
Capital * 22,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

Issued, Subscribed and
Paid-up Share Capital **||{ofRs.10/- each.

Rs.1,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore only) divided into 10,00,000 Equity Shares

10.

* During the financial year under review, Authorized Share Capital of the Company
increased from Rs. 1,00,00,000 (Rupees One Crore Only) divided into 10,00,000 (Ten
Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each to Rs. 225,00,00,000 (Rupees Two Hundred Twenty
Five Crore Only) divided into 22,50,00,000 (Twenty Two Crores Fifty Lakhs) Equity Shares
of Rs.10/-each.

** Allotment of 8,25,80,000 (Eight Crore Twenty Five Lakh Eighty Thousand) Equity
shares of Rs. 10/- (Ten) each to equity share holders of the Company on right basis, which

shall rank Pari passu in all respect with existing share holders w.e.f 24™ July, 2020.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

The Company is Joint Venture Company promoted by, Gujarat Rail Infrastructure
Development Corporation Limited, Gujarat Industrial Development Corporation and
Maruti Suzuki India Limited. Therefore by virtue of share holding pattern the company

becomes associate company of ].V. Partners.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS:

The Company has not issued any Equity Shares with Differential Voting Rights during the
financial year and it is therefore not required to make disclosures specified in Rule 4 (4) of

Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014.
DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF SWEAT EQUITY SHARES:

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the financial year and it is
therefore not required to make disclosures specified in Rule 8 (13) of Companies (Share

Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014.
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11. DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION:

The company has not issued any shares under Employee Stock Option Scheme during the
financial year and itis therefore not required to make disclosures specified in Rule 12 (9) of

Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014.
12. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

As the Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited is nota Listed Company therefore section 197
(12) and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,

2014, statement of particulars of employees are notapplicable to the Company.

13. DIRECTORSAND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

During the financial year under review, following changes have been made in the

Composition of the Board of Directors as on the date of this Reportare as follows:

Mr. Zaigham Ali Khan (DIN: 07655360) resigned from directorship on account of transfer.
Mr. Dharmesh Narharibhai Brahmbhatt (DIN: 08268559) resigned from directorship and
in his place Ms. Kavita Sheth (Shah)) (DIN: 08268558) was appointed as Woman Director

asrepresentative of GIDC.

Ms. Kavita Sheth (Shah) (DIN: 08268558) who was appointed as additional woman

director during the year ceases to be director at ensuing Annual General Meeting and is

being appointed as regular Woman Director of the Company.

14. MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION:

The Company is not required to make disclosures pursuant to Rule 5 of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)Rules, 2014 relating to

Managerial Remuneration being an Unlisted Company.

15. DIRECTORSLIABLE TO RETIRE BY ROTATION:

Pursuant to the Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri Bajrang Warli (DIN:
07133942) and Shri Raj Swarup Kapoor(DIN: 08303688) retires by rotation at the AGM of

the Company and being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment.

The Company has received the disclosure in Form DIR-8 stating that they are eligible to be

re-appointed at theforthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

= = = == == == _‘T_a@rﬁ__?; _ == == = = ==
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16. DEPOSITS:

During the financial year under review, the Company has not accepted any Deposits from
the public and it is therefore not required to comply with the requirement under the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

17. BOARD MEETING:

Notice of Meeting is prepared and circulated in advance to the Directors as required under
Secretarial Standards. During the year, Four Board Meetings were convened and held on
08/05/2019,15/07/2019,14/11/2019,and 09/01/2020.

18. BOARD EVALUATION:

Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited is incorporated as State Government Company, a
Joint Venture of GIDC, G-RIDE and MSIL. Therefore Clause(p) of Sub-section (3) of Section
134 shallnotapply.

19. AUDITORS:

The Auditors, M/s. SHAH & DALAL (FRN:109432W), Chartered Accountant, Ahmedabad,
were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2020-2021 by
the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, vide Letter No. CA.V/COY/GUJARAT,
BRCL(1)/235dated 14/08/2020.

20. AUDITORS' REPORT:

The Auditors' Report does not contain any qualification. Notes to Accounts and Auditors

remarksin their reportare self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

21. COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The Company has received letter No. A.M.G.1/Accounts/BRCL/2019-20/0W.59 dated
04th September, 2020 from Comptroller and Auditor General of India on the audited
accounts of the company for the year ended on 31/03/2020 stating that nothing
significant has come to the knowledge which would give raise to any comment upon

statutory Auditors' Reportby C & AG.
22. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of annual return in Form - MGT
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9 asapartofthis Annual Reportas ANNEXUREIIL

23. INTERNALAUDIT & CONTROLS:

The internal auditor appointed was M/s. Thakkar Dhaval R. & Associates were appointed
as internal auditor for FY 2019-20.The Company has initiated process for appointment of

Internal Auditors for further years by following Tender Process.

24. CORPORATESOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

During the year under review, under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the provision

of Corporate Social Responsibility isnotapplicable to the company.

25. RISKMANAGEMENT POLICY:

BRCL shall identify the possible risks associated with its business and commits itself to put
in place a Risk Management Frame work to address the risk involved on an ongoing basis to
ensure achievement of the business objective without any interruptions. BRCL shall
optimize the risks involved by managing their exposure and bringing them in line with the

acceptableriskappetite of the Company.

26. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The Company has no activities which require disclosure relating to conservation of energy
or technology absorption as it is not a Manufacturing Company. There has been no foreign

exchange earnings or outgo during the year under review.

27. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT:

No material changes and commitments have occurred after the close of the financial year
till the date of this report, which affect the financial position of the Company other than
those specifically highlighted in this report.

28. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

No significant or material orders were passed by the regulator or court or tribunals which

impactthe going concern status and Company's operations in future.
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32.

33.
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OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

In order to prevent sexual harassment of women at work place a new act The Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
has been notified on 9thDecember, 2013. Under the said Act every company is required to
set up an Internal Complaints Committee to look into complaints relating to sexual

harassmentatwork place of any women employee.

Company will adopt a policy in future for prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at
workplace and will set up Committee for implementation of said policy, if required. During

the financial year under review, Company has notreceived any complaint of harassment.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS:

During the year under review, the Company has not given any loans, made any investments
or given guarantees on any loans, which fall within the purview of the provisions of Section
134(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence, no disclosures are required to be made

thereof.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS ORARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

During the year under review,contracts and arrangements with related parties under
Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, are reported in the Audited Balance sheet of
the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

During the year under review, the provisions pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule (6) of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules,

2014 wasnotapplicable to the company in context of Audit Committee.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

During the year under review,the provisions pursuantto Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with rule (6) of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014
were not applicable to the company in context of Nomination and Remuneration

Committee.
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34. DIRECTORS'RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The Directors' Responsibility Statement referred to in clause (c) of sub-section (3) of

Section 134 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, shall state that—

(a) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards

had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b)  the Directors had selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial

year and of the profitand loss of the Company for that financial year;

(c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other

irregularities;
(d)  TheDirectorshad prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and

operating effectively.

35. SECRETARIALAUDIT REPORT:

Section 204 of the companies Act, 2013 relating to Secretarial Auditis notapplicable to the
Company. Therefore the Company is not required to obtain Secretarial Audit Report in
Form No. MR-3 pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule (9) of the

Companies (Appointmentand Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

36. TRANSFEROFAMOUNTSTOINVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:

In terms of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Investor Education and
Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, shares of
the Company in respect of which dividend entitlements have remained unclaimed or
unpaid for seven consecutive years or more, are required to be transferred by the Company
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) of the Government of India.There

were no such instances requiring compliance with the same.
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37. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your Directors express their warm wish to place on record their sincere appreciation to the
Co-Operation extended by the Registrar of Companies, Comptroller & Auditor General of
India and Statutory Auditors. The Directors are also grateful to the Government of
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For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of
BAHUCHARAJI RAIL CORPORATIONLIMITED

Place : Gandhinagar
Date : 22/09/2020
Sd/-
ASHWINIKUMAR RAJENDRAPRASAD YADAV
Chairman
DIN: 06581753
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ANNEXURE -1

Office of the Principal Accountant General (Audit)-II, Gujarat
No.AMG-1/Accounts/BRCL/2019-20/0W59/04.09.2020
To,
Managing Director,
Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited,
7" Floor, Block No-6, Udyog Bhavan
Sector-11, Gandhinagar-382011

Subject: Comment of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143(6)(b) of
the Companies Act, 2013 on the financial statements of Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Sir,
Please find enclosed nil comment certificate of the Comptroller and Auditor General of
India under Section 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the financial statements of

Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020 for being placed before

Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Under Section 143(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 the comments of the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India are required to be sent by Company to every person entitled to copies of
audited financial statements under Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and also to be
placed before the Annual General Meeting of the Company at the same time and in the same
manner as the Statutory Auditor's Report of the Company. The date of placing the Report of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India before the Annual General Meeting may please be

intimated to this office.
Six copies of the printed accounts may please be sent to this office for our use and record.
Receiptofthisletter with its enclosures may please be acknowledged.
Yours faithfully,
Sr. Dy. Accountant General (AMG-I)

Encl: As above
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION
143(6)(b)OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
BAHUCHARAJIRAIL CORPORATION LIMITED FORTHEYEARENDED 31 MARCH 2020

The preparation of financial statements of the Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2020 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. The
Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139
(5) of the Act are responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under Section
143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their
Revised Audit Reportdated 04July 2020.

[, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary
audit of the financial statements of Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited for the year ended 31
March 2020 under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act, This supplementary audit has been carried out
independently without access to the working papers of the Statutory Auditors and is limited
primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditors and Company personnel and a selective

examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which would give rise to

any commentupon or supplementto Statutory Auditor's Report.

For and on behalf of the

Comptroller and Auditor General of India

Sd/-

(H.K. Dharmadarshi)

Principal Accountant General (Audit-II), Gujarat

Place: Ahmedabad
Date:04/09/2020
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ANNEXURE - 11

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2020
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1. CIN

U45101GJ2018SGC105602

2. Registration Date

13/12/2018

3. Name of the Company

BAHUCHARAJITRAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

4. Category/Sub-category of the
Company

Company Limited by Shares
State Government Company

5. |Address of the Registered office
& contact details

Block No. 6,7" Floor, Udhyog Bhavan, Sector-11,
Gandhinagar-382011

6. Whetherlisted company

No

7. Name, Address & contact details
ofthe Registrar & Transfer Agent,
ifany.

Not Applicable

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:

(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall

be stated)
SN Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover
Main Products/ Services Product/ Service of the company
NIL

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

Holding/ % of .
sn | Name a'é‘(l) idg;ess of the CIN/GLN Subsidiary | Shares Al;‘;i't‘;f‘)ll’lle
pany / Associate | Held
1. Gujarat Rail Infrastructure |[U74999GJ2017SGC095040 |Associate 41.00 2(6)
Development Corporation
Limited
2. Gujarat Industrial Not Applicable Associate  |26.00 2(6)
Development Corporation
3. | Maruti Suzuki India Limited |[L34103DL1981PLC011375 |Associate 33.00 2(6)
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding

. . 0,
Category of Share Holders No. of Shares held at the beginning No. of Shares held at the end of the %

of the Year [As on 31-March - 2019] Year [As on 31-March - 2019] Change
during
Dem | Physical Total %of | Dem| ppysical Total % of
at Y Total |at | Total | the year
Shares Shares

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF - - - - - - - - -
b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
c) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - i
d) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - B B B
e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - R B
)Any other Company - 10,00,000 10,00,000 | 100 - 10,00,000 | 10,00,000 | 100 | -
Sub-Total [A](1) - - - - - - - - -
(2) Foreign - - - - - - - - -

a) NRI-Individual - - - - - - - - -
b) Other-Individual - - - - - - R - -
c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - B B B
d) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - R
e) Any other - - - - - - - R R
Sub-Total [A] (2) - - - - - - - - -
Total shareholding of
Promoter (A) = (A) (1)+(A) (2) | - - - - - - - - R
B.Public Shareholding
1. Institutions - - - - - - - - -
a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - R R
b) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
c) Central Govt - - - - - - - R N
d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - R R N

e)Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -

f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -
g) FllIs - - - - - - - R R
h) Foreign Venture Capital
Funds - - - - - - - - -
i) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (B)(1):- - - - - - - - R -
2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - B B
i) Indian - - - - - - - R R
ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -
b) Individuals - - - - - - - f B
i) Individual share holders
holding nominal share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share capital
in excess of Rs 1 lakh

c) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (B)(2):- - - - - - - - - B
Total Public Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2) - - - - e . . L
C. Shares held by Custodian
for GDRs & ADRs - - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C)

- 10,00,000 10,00,000 | 100 - 10,00,000 | 10,00,000 | 100 | -
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ii) Shareholding of Promoter

Sr.
No

Share Holder’s Name

Share holding at the beginning

of the year

Share holding at the end of the year
[As on 31 - March - 2020]

No. of
Shares

% of total
Shares of
the
Company

% of Shares
Pledge /
encumbered
to total
shares

No. of
Shares

% of total
Shares of
the
Company

% of Shares
Pledge /
encumbered
to total
shares

%
Change
in share
holding

during
the year

Mr. Ashwinikumar
Rajendraprasad Yadav,
IAS

(For and on Behalf of
Gujarat Rail
Infrastructure
Development
Corporation Limited (G-
RIDE)

4,09,998

41.00

4,09,998

41.00

Mr. Zaigham Ali Khan ,
IRAS

(Nominee Gujarat Rail
Infrastructure
Development
Corporation Limited (G-
RIDE)

0.00

0.00

Mr. Santosh Kumar,
IRSE

(Nominee of Gujarat
RailInfrastructure
Development
Corporation Limited (G-
RIDE)

0.00

0.00

Mr.Bajrang
Chhaganbhai Warli

(For and on Behalf of
Gujarat Industrial
Development
Corporation (GIDC)

2,59,999

26.00

2,59,999

26.00

Mr.Dharmesh
Narharibhai
Brahmbhatt (Nominee
of Gujarat Industrial
Development
Corporation (GIDC)

0.00

0.00

Mr. Sanjeev Grover

(For and on Behalf of
MARUTI SUZUKI INDIA
LIMITED)

3,29,999

33.00

3,29,999

33.00

Mr. Raj Swarup Kapoor
(Nominee of MARUTI
SUZUKI INDIA LIMITED)

1

0.00

1

0.00

Total

10,00,000

100.00

10,00,000

100.00
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iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is change) - NO CHANGE

%2]

Particulars

Z

beginning of the year

Shareholding at the at the

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of | % of total shares No. of
shares | of the company shares

% of total shares
of the company

At the beginning of the year

No Change

At the end of the year

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters
Holders of and GDRs and ADRs): NOT APPLICABLE

SN | For Each of the Top 10
Shareholders

beginning of the year

Shareholding at the at the

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of | % of total shares No. of
shares | of the company shares

% of total shares
of the company

At the beginning of the year

No Change

At the end of the year

==\ @ = =
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v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

S | Particulars Shareholding at the at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
No. of % of total shares | No. of % of total shares
shares of the company | shares of the company

1. | ASHWINIKUMAR RAJENDRAPRASAD YADAV , IAS
(For and on Behalf of Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited (G-RIDE)

At the beginning of the year 4,09,998 41.00 - -
No Change - - - -
At the end of the year 4,09,998 41.00 | 4,09,998 41.00

2. | BAJRANG WARLI CHHAGANBHAI
(For and on Behalf of Gujarat Industrial Development Corporation (GIDC)

At the beginning of the year 2,59,999 26.00 - -
No Change - - - -
At the end of the year 2,59,999 26.00 | 2,59,999 26.00

3. | SANTOSH KUMAR, IRSE
(Nominee of Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited (G-RIDE)

At the beginning of the year 1 0.00 - -
No Change - - - -
At the end of the year 1 0.00 1 0.00

5. | BATCHU VENUGOPAL

At the beginning of the year - - - -
No Change - - - -
At the end of the year - - - -

6. | RA] SWARUP KAPOOR
(Nominee of MARUTI SUZUKI INDIA LIMITED)

At the beginning of the year 1 0.00 - -
No Change - - - -
At the end of the year 1 0.00 1 0.00

8. | KAVITA RAKESHKUMAR SHAH

(Nominee of Gujarat Industrial Development Corporation (GIDC)

At the beginning of the year - - - -
No Change - - - -
At the end of the year - - - -
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V. INDEBTEDNESS-Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but
not due for payment:

Secured
Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the F. Y.
i) Principal Amount 0 0 0 0
ii) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0
Total (i+ii+iii) 0 0 0 0
Change in Indebtedness during the F. Y.
* Addition 0| 14,36,86,567 0| 14,36,86,567
* Reduction 0 0 0 0
Net Change 0| 14,36,86,567 0| 14,36,86,567
Indebtedness at the end of the F. Y.
i) Principal Amount 0| 14,31,27,855 0| 14,31,27,855
ii) Interest due but not paid 0 5,58,712 0 5,58,712
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0
Total (i+ii+iii) 0| 14,36,86,567 0| 14,36,86,567

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-Time Directors and/or Manager:
NOT APPLICABLE

B. Remuneration to other Directors: NOT APPLICABLE

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other than MD/ Manager/
WTD:NOT APPLICABLE

VII. PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:NOT APPLICABLE

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of
BAHUCHARAJI RAIL CORPORATIONLIMITED

Place: Gandhinagar
Date:22/09/2020
Sd/-
ASHWINIKUMAR RAJENDRAPRASAD YADAV
Chairman

DIN: 06581753
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF

BAHUCHARA]JI RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BAHUCHARA]I RAIL CORPORATION
LIMITED ('the Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheetas at March 31,2020, the Statement
of Profit and Loss for the year then ended, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements,

including a summary of significantaccounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including Ind AS, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2020, and

its financial performance, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.
Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the

Standalone Financial Statements.
Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the

Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) with respectto the preparation of these financial statements that
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give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair

view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate

the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative butto do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting

process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economicdecisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e [dentified and assessed the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, design and also performed audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
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obtain audit evidence thatis sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

e Obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such

controls.

e Evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Concluded on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or; if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluated the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

eventsinamanner thatachieves fair presentation.

® We have conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent

applicable.

2. Weareenclosing our reportin terms of section 143(5) of the act, on the basis of such checks
of the Books and Records of the company as we considered appropriate and according to
information and explanation given to us, in the “Annexure B” on the direction and sub-

directionsissued by Comptroller and Auditor General of India.
3.  Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so farasitappears from our examination of those books;

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit &Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt

with by this Reportare in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014;

e) Thecompany being Government Company, provisions of sub section 2 of section 164 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable as per Notification No.G.S.R.463 [E] dated
5th]June, 2015 of Ministry of Corporate Affairs;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
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of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate

reportin “Annexure C”; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies ( Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our knowledge and beliefand according to the information and explanations

giventous:

The Company does not have any pending litigations as on Balance Sheet dated March
31,2020.

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including

derivative contracts.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

for Shah & Dalal
Chartered Accountants
[FRN: 109432W]

sd/-

Place : Ahmedabad Malay Dalal

Partner

Date : 04/07/2020 M. No. : 036776
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“ANNEXURE A” REFERRED TO IN THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Of even date to the members of BAHUCHARAJI RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED on the
Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirement of our

reportofeven date)

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
Financial Statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the

normal course of audit, we reportthat:
(I) Inrespectofits fixed assets:

The company does not have any fixed asset therefore this clause is notapplicable. However

the company has Capital Asset Work in Progress and itis reflected in Financial Statement.
(i) Thecompanydoesnothave any inventory therefore this clause isnotapplicable.

(iii) The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained under

section 189 ofthe Companies Act,2013.

(iv)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, nor given any guarantees and securities u/s 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,

2013.Hencereportingunder clause (iv) of CARO 2016 isnotapplicable to the Company.

(v)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits from the public within the meaning of provision of section 73 to 76 of the Act
and the rules framed there under and hence reporting under clause (v) of the CARO 2016

isnotapplicable.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records specified by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to this Company. Hence reporting
under clause (vi) of CARO 2016 is notapplicable to the Company.

(vii) Accordingto the information and explanation given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company had been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including,

Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, and other material statutory dues applicable to it

= = = == == == _'T_a _——— = == == == == ==
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tothe appropriate authorities.
(b) Thereisnodisputewithrevenue authorities regarding any duty or tax payable.

(viii) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted

inrepayment of dues to a financial institution or bank.

(ix) Tothebestofourknowledge and accordingto the information and explanation given to us,
during the year Company has not raised money by way of Initial Public Offer and/or
Further Public Offer(including Debt Instrument) and also company has not obtained any

Termloan and therefore this clause isnotapplicable to the company.

(x) Tothebestofourknowledge and according to the information and explanation given to us,
no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has

beennoticed orreported during the period.

(xi) The Company is exempted from section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 since this is the
Government Company as per Notification No.G.S.R.463 [E] dated 5th June, 2015 of
Ministry of Corporate Affairs. Hence reporting under clause (xi) of CARO 2016 is not
applicable to the Company.

(xii) The Company isnotaNidhi Company and hence reportingunder clause (xii) of CARO 2016
isnotapplicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us the Company
is in compliance with section 188 and 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable.
For all transaction with the related parties and the details of related parties transaction
have been disclosed in the financial statements etc, as required by the applicable Indian

Accounting Standards.

(xiv) During the period the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under

clause (xiv) of CARO 2016 is notapplicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, during the
period the Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with its directors or
persons connected with him and hence provision of section 192 of the Companies Act,

2013 arenotapplicable.
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(xvi) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of

India Act, 1934.

for Shah & Dalal
Chartered Accountants
[FRN: 109432W]

Sd/-

Place : Ahmedabad Malay Dalal
Partner

Date:04/07/2020 M. No.: 036776
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“ANNEXURE B” REFERRED TO IN THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

of even date to The members of BAHUCHARAJI RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED on the

Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirement of our

reportof even date)

Report under Section 143(5) of Companies Act, 2013 for the Financial Year
2019-20

1. MAIN DIRECTION:

Sr.

No.

Directions

Comments

1.

Whether the Company has system in place to
process all the accounting transactions
through IT system? If no, the implications of
processing of accounting transactions
outside IT system on the integrity of the
accounts along with the financial
implications, if any, may be stated.

Yes. All Accounting
transactions are processed
through IT Systems.

Whether there is any restructuring of an
existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of
debts/loans/internet etc. made by a lender
to the Company due to the Company's
inability to repay the loan? If yes, the
financial impact may be stated.

No waiver/write off is done
during the period under
Audit.

Whether funds received /receivable for
specific schemes from Central /State
agencies were properly accounted for/
utilised as per its term and conditions? List
the cases of deviation.

As per the information and
explanation provided to us,
the Company has not
received any amount for
specific scheme from
Central /State agencies
except share capital amount
received from Gujarat
Industrial Development
Corporation and the same is
accounted properly and
deposited in bank account.
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1. SECTOR SPECIFIC DIRECTIONS : INFRASTRUCTURE SECTOR

Sr.

No.

Sub-Directions

Comments

1.

Whether the Company has taken
adequate measures to prevent
encroachment of idle land owned by it.
Whether any land of the Company is
encroached, under litigation, not put to
use or declared surplus? Details may be
provided.

As per the information and
explanation provided to us,
during the course of audit we
have observed that the
company has not acquired/own
any land during the period
under audit.

Whether the system in vogue for
identification of projects to be taken up
under Public Private Partnership is in
line with the guidelines/ policies of the
Government? Comment on deviation if
any.

Not Applicable.

Whether system for monitoring the
execution of works vis-a-vis they-vis the
milestones stipulated in the agreement
is in existence and the impact of cost
escalation, if any, revenues/ losses

from contracts, etc., have been properly
accounted for in the books.

As per the information and
explanation provided to us,
during the course of audit we
have observed that company
has awarded Tender for EPC for
“Gauge Conversion of Katosan
Road - Becharaji (26.6 KMs)
Metre Gauge to Broad Gauge
alongwith new MSIL BG Siding
(Approx 3 KMs) at Becharaji
with 25KV AC Electrification in
Ahmedabad Di vision of Western
Railway” in favour of M/s
Kalpataru Power Transmission
Limited. With reference to said
EPC Contract, as informed to us,
M/s Kalpataru Power
Transmission Limited has not
commenced the works activity
and therefore this point is not
applicable.
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Whether funds received/ receivable for
specific schemes from central/ State
agencies were properly accounted

for/utilized? List the cases of deviations.

As per the information and
explanation provided to us, the
Company has not received any
amount f or specific scheme
from Central /State agencies
except share capital amount
received from Gujarat Industrial
Development Corporation and
the same is accounted properly
and deposited in bank account.

Whether the bank guarantees have been
revalidated in time?

As per the information and
explanation provided to us, the
company has not availed any
Bank Guarantee during the year
therefore this point is not
applicable.

Comment on the confirmation of
balances of trade receivables, trade
payables, term deposits, bank accounts
and cash obtained.

We have obtained following
Confirmations and all are in
agreement with figures of
Financial Statements:

1. Bank Balance Certificate from
Yes Bank

2. Balance & Interest certificate
of Deposit with GSFS.

3. Balance Confirmation of
Gujarat Rail Infrastructure
Development Limited

There were no trade receivables

as on Balance Sheet date.

The cost incurred on abandoned
projects may be quantified and

the amount actually written-off shall
be mentioned.

As per the information and
explanation provided to us,
there is no abandoned project
therefore this point is not
applicable.

Place : Ahmedabad

Date : 04/07/2020

For, Shah & Dalal
Chartered Accountants
[FRN: 109432W]

Sd/-

Malay Dalal

Partner

M. No.: 036776
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(Referred to in paragraph 3(f) under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirement of our

ANNEXURE “C” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

reportofeven date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under clause (i) of Sub
section 3 of Section 143 of the companies Act,2013 ('the Act').

We have audited the Internal financial controls over financial reporting of BAHUCHARAJI RAIL
CORPORATION LIMITED (“the Company”) as on 31st March, 2020 in conjunction with our audit

ofthe standalone financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date.
MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FORINTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential component of internal control stated in the guidance note on
audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibility include the design implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required

under the Companies Act, 2013.
AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the guidance
note on Audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on auditing prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those standards and the guidance note require that we comply with ethical
requirement and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such

controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
ofinternal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness if internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedure selected depend on auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due of

fraud orerror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.
MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation for
external purpose in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's

internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable details, accurately and fairly

reflectthe transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transaction are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statement in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipt and expenditures of the company are being made only in

accordance with authorization of managementand directors of the company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on

the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATION OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitation of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any
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evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate.
OPINION

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the
company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31st March, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountant of India.

For, Shah & Dalal
Chartered Accountants
[FRN: 109432W]

Sd/-

Place : Ahmedabad Malay Dalal
Partner

Date : 04/07/2020 M. No.: 036776
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BAHUCHARAIJI RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN:U45101GJ20185GC105602
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020
(Amount in ¥)
Particulars Note As at As at
No. March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
I ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment - -
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 4 961818 -
(c) Other Intangible Assets - -
(d) Intangible Assets Under Development - -
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Investments -- -
(i) Trade Receivables - -
(i) Loans - -
(iv) Other Financial Assets - -
(f) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) - -
(g) Other Non-current Assets 13 05 83 569 --
SUB-TOTAL 13 15 45 387 --
CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Inventories - -
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments - -
(i) Trade Receivables - -
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 7 1390076 74 08 400
(iv) Loans - -
(v) Other Financial Assets - -~
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) - -
(d) Other Current Assets 3575031 26 00 000
SUB-TOTAL 49 65 107 100 08 400
TOTAL ASSETS 13 65 10 494 100 08 400
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Il EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity

SUB-TOTAL
LIABILITIES

Share Application Money Pending for Allotment
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(i) Trade Payable
(iii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisions
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net)
(d) Other non current liabilities

SUB-TOTAL

CURRENT LIABILITIES

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade Payable
(b) Provisions
(c) Other current liabilities
(d) Current tax liabilities (net)

SUB-TOTAL
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

IFinancial Statements

10
11

12

13
14
15
16
17

100 00 000 -
(3 71 97 406) (16113 935)
(27197 406) (16113 935)
- 100 00 000

- 100 00 000

143127 855 -
192 68 403 158 29 546
12 25 261 263 200
86 381 29 589

16 37 07 900 16122335
13 65 10 494 100 08 400

Significant accounting policies & Notes forming part of 1,2&3

As per our report of even date
For Shah & Dalal

|Chartered Accountants

FRN. 109432W

Sd/-

(Malay Dalal)

Partner

Membership No. 036776

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: July 04, 2020

Notes on accounts form integral part of the financial statements

Sd/-

(Santosh Kumar)
Director / CEO
DIN: 07854179

Place: Gandhinagar
Date: July 04, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

(B. C. WARLI)
Director
DIN: 07133942
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BAHUCHARAIJI RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN:U45101GJ20185GC105602
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on March 31, 2020
(Amount in ¥)
Note For the period from For the period from
Particulars No April 01, 2019 to December
March 31, 2020 13,2018 to
March 31, 2019
Revenue
| Revenue from operations -- --
Il Other Income 18 1759470 8400
Il Total Income (I+l1) 17 59 470 8 400
IV Expenses
Employee benefit expense, payment to contractors and 19 6 35 003 29474
consultants
Finance costs 20 -- --
Depreciation and amortisation expense 21 - -
Other expenses 22 22207938 16090661
Total expenses (IV) 22842941 16120135
V Profit /(Loss) before exceptional item and taxes (llI-1V) (21083 471) (16111735)
VI Exceptional ltem - -
VII Profit/(loss) before tax (V-VI) (210 83 471) (16111 735)
VIlI Tax expense
Current tax -- 2200
Deferred Tax - -
Total Tax Expenses -- --
IX Profit/(loss) after tax for the period (VII-VIII ) (21083 471) (16113 935)
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X Other comprehensive income

A(i) Items that may not be reclassified to profit or loss

(a) Changes in revaluation surplus

(b) Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities / (asset)
(c) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income
(d) Fair value changes relating to own credit risk

(e) Others (specify nature)

(i) Income tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

B(i) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

(b) Debt instruments through other comprehensive income

(d) Share of other comprehensive income of equity accounted investees

(e) Others (specify nature)

(ii) Income tax on items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
SUB-TOTAL

Xl Total comprehensive income for the period (IX + X)

Earnings per equity share: 23
Basic
Diluted

Significant accounting policies & Notes forming part of Financial
Statements

(a) Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of foreign operations -

(c) Effective portion of gains and loss on designated portion of hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge -

(2 10 83 471)

(16113 935)

(35.3)
(35.3)

1,2&3

INotes on accounts form integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For Shah & Dalal

Chartered Accountants

FRN. 109432W

Sd/-

(Malay Dalal)

Partner

Membership No. 036776

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: July 04, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
(Santosh Kumar) (B. C. WARLI)
Director / CEO Director
DIN: 07854179 DIN: 07133942

Place: Gandhinagar
Date: July 04, 2020
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BAHUCHARAIJI RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN:U45101GJ20185GC105602
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Loss before tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss

Adjusted for:-
Interest Income
Finance Cost

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes

Adjusted for Movement in Working Capital:
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Current Assets
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade Payable

Increase/ (Decrease) in Provisions
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other current liabilities

Operating Profit after Working Capital Changes
Taxes Paid (Net of Refund)

Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Increase in Capital Work in Progress

Increase in Non Current Assets
Interest Income

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities :

Proceeds From Share Capital

Proceeds from Application Money pending allotement
Proceeds from short term borrowing

Finance Cost

Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A)+(B)+(C)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year

Break up of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Balances with Banks-In Current/Saving Accounts

(Amount in ¥)
For the period from For the period from

April 01, 2019 to December 13, 2018 to
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

(21083 471) (16111 735)

(461165) 8400

(2 15 44 636) (16103 335)
(3575031) -

34 38 857 158 29 546

962061 263200

56 792 29 589

882679 16122335

i ( 2200)

(2 06 61 957) 16 800
(961818) -
(13 05 83 569) -

461165 ( 8400)

(13 10 84 222) ( 8400)

26 00 000 -

- 74 00 000

14 31 27 855 --

14 57 27 855 74 00 000

(60 18 324) 74 08 400

74 08 400 -

13 90 076 74 08 400

1390076 74 08 400

13 90 076 74 08 400
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Notes:
1 Cash and cash equivalent include cash and bank balances and deposits with the Bank (Maturity less than 3 months).

2 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect method’ as set out in the Ind AS - 7 Statement of
Cash Flow.

3 Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever considered necessary to conform to the current
year's figures.

As per our report of even date attached,

For Shah & Dalal
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
FRN. 109432W

Sd/- sd/- sd/-
(Malay Dalal) (Santosh Kumar) (B. C. WARLI)
Partner Director / CEO Director
Membership No. 036776 DIN: 07854179 DIN: 07133942
Place: Ahmedabad Place: Gandhinagar

Date: July 04, 2020 Date: July 04, 2020
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BAHUCHARAIJI RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN:U45101GJ20185GC105602

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(Amount in )

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

As at 13th December 2018
Changes in equity share capital
As at 31st March 2019
Changes in equity share capital

As at 31st March 2020

B. OTHER EQUITY

As at 13th December 2018
Profit/(loss) for the year
Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income

Balance As at 31st March 2019
Profit/(loss) for the year
Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income

Balance As at 31st March 2020

10000000
10000000

(16113 935)

(16113 935)
(21083 471)

(3 71 97 406)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached,

For Shah & Dalal
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 109432W

Sd/-
(Malay Dalal)
Partner

Membership No. 036776

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: July 04, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
(Santosh Kumar) (B. C. WARLI)
Director / CEO Director
DIN: 07854179 DIN: 07133942

Place: Gandhinagar
Date: July 04, 2020
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BAHUCHARAJI RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ending on March 31, 2020

Background
Corporate Information:

Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited, is a special purpose vehicle (SPV) for the Railway
project of Bahucharaji - Katosan as per GR No.MIS-10-2017-1665-1-1 dated 05/02/2018
issued by Government of Gujarat to carry on the business of development, financing,
planning and implementation of Guage Conversion of Katosan Road-Becharaji-Chanasma-

Ranuj for 65 Kmsline projectin the state of Gujarat.

The financial staements were authorised for issue in accordance with the resolution of
Board of Directors on 26thJune 2020.

(A) Basisof Preparation
a. Statement of Compliance:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016
notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013. (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions
ofthe Act.

The financial statements up to and for the year ended 31 March, 2019 were prepared in
accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under

Section 133 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

As these are the Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards has been applied. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the
previously reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the

Company is provided in Note 30.
Details of the Company's accounting policies are included in Note 3(B).
b. Functional and Presentation Currency:

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the

Company's functional currency.

A\
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c. Use of Estimates and Judgements:

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of

assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Critical Estimates and Judgments

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates
and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed.Detailed
information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes
together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the

financial statements.

Areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:
e Otherareasareasbelow:

- Estimation of current tax expense and payable

- Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about

thelikelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources
- Impairment of Financial Assets

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to

accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.
d. Measurement of Fair Values:

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of

fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs

used in the valuation techniques as follows.
- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the

assetorliability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
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- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

(unoberservable-inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or aliability, the Company uses observable market
rate as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall
into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is
categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level

input thatis significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of

the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the

following notes:

- Note 27-Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
-Note 29-Fair Value Measurement

(B) Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the period

presented in these financial statements.
I. Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Initial Measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to

the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at
fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to

itsacquisition orissue.
Classification and Subsequent Measurement and Gain and Losses: Financial Assets

Financial Assets at amortised cost- These assets are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized

in profitorloss. Any gains orloss or derecognition is effected in profit orloss statement.
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Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) - All equity
investments are measured at fair values. Investments which are not held for trading
purposes and where the Company has exercised the option to classify the investment as at
FVTOCI, all fair value changes on the investment are recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI). The accumulated gain or losses are recognized in OCI are reclassified to

retained earnings on sale of such investment.

Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and loss (FVTPL) - These assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or

dividend income, are recognized in profitorloss.
Classification, Subsequent Measurement and Gains and Losses: Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest
method. For trade and other payable maturing within one year from the balance sheet date,

the carrying value approximates fair value due to short maturity of these investments.
Derecognition: Financial Assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows
in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred or in which the company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the

financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its
balance sheet but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the

transferred assets, the transferred assets are notderecognised.
Derecognition: Financial Liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are

discharged or cancelled or expired.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the
cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the

carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with
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modified termsis recognised in profit orloss.
Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has alegally enforceable right to
set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset

and settle the liability simultaneously.
ii. Currentversus Non-Current Classification:

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-

currentclassification. An assetis treated as current when itis:

(a) expected to be realised in, or is intended to be sold or consumed in Company's normal

operating cycle;
(b) held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
(c) expectedtoberealised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(d) cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a

liability for atleast 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

ALiability is current when:

(a) itisexpectedtobesettled in Company's normal operating cycle;

(b) itisheld primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(c) itisduetobesettled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(d) The Company does nothave an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
foratleast 12 months after the reporting date.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Operating Cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their

realisationin cash or cash equivalents.
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iii. Impairment:
Impairment of Financial Instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets

measured atamortised cost.

Ateachreporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised
costare credit-impaired. A financial asset is 'credit-impaired’ when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have

occurred.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all

possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company
considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed creditassessmentand

including forward-looking information.
Measurement of Expected Credit Losses

Expected creditlosses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Creditlosses are
measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the

Company expects to receive.)
Presentation of Allowance for Expected Credit Losses in the Balance Sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the

gross carrying amount of the assets.
Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the

Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
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generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to

comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.
Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of

impairment. Ifany such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amountis estimated.
iv. Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to
foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly
attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are

incurred.
v. Borrowing

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
Where there is a breach of a material provision of along term loan arrangement on or before
the end of reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on
the reporting date, the Company does not classify the liability as current, if the lender
agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statement for

issue, notto demand paymentas a consequence of the breach.
vi. Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognised when there is reasonable certainity of its ultimate collection/

realization.

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method and are accounted on

accrual basis except, interest on mobilization advance is recognized on realisation basis.

All otheritem ofincome are accounted on accrual basis.
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vii. Provisions (other than Employee Benefits):

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and itis probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the legal or contractual obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Expected future operatinglosses are not provided for.
Contingencies

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines,
penalties, etc. are recognized when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the

amount can be estimated reliably.
viii. ContingentLiabilities:

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle or areliable estimate of the amount cannot be

made.
ix. Income Taxes:

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Itis recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive

income.
Current Tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss
for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years.
The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or

received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured
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using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the

liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Tax benefits of deductions earned on exercise of employee stock options in excess of

compensation charged toincome are credited to other comprehensive income.
Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried

forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred taxis notrecognised for:

- Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit/loss at the time of the

transaction;
- Taxable Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong
evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of
recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has
sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that
sufficient taxable profit will be available agianst which such deferred tax asset can be
realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting
date and are recognised / reduced to the extent that it is probable / no longer probable

respectively thatthe related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
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manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but hey intend to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be

realised simultaneously.

Deferred tax in respect of timing differences which reverse after the tax holiday period is

recognized in the year in which the timing differences originate.
x. Earnings per Share:

Basic earnings / (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. The weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding
during the year are adjusted for events of bonus issue and share split. For the purpose of
calculating diluted earnings / (loss) per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the

year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
xi. Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to

aninsignificantrisk of changesinvalue.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are

considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.
xii. Events after the Reporting Period:

Adjusting events are events that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the
end of the reporting period. The financial statements are adjusted for such events before
authorisation for issue. Non-adjusting events are events that are indicative of conditions
that arose after the end of the reporting period. Non-adjusting events after the reporting

date are notaccounted, but disclosed.
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xiii. Property, Plantand Equipment

Capital work in progress includes expenditure incurred on assets which are yet to be
commissioned. All the directly identifiable and ascertainable expenditure, incidental and
related to construction incurred during the period of construction on a project, till it is
commissioned, is kept as Capital work in progress (CWIP) and after commissioning the

same istransferred / allocated to the respective “fixed assets”.

Further, advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
outstanding at each balance sheet date are classified as capital advances under other non-

currentassets.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ending on March 31, 2020
(Amount in ¥)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
4 Capital Work-in-Progress includes
On account of Project Development Expenditure 961818 --
Total 9 61 818 --
5 Deferred tax asset relating to
Deffered Tax Assets (Net) - --
Deferred tax Asset - --
Deferred tax Liability relating to - -
Net Deffered tax Asset
6 Other Non-current Assets
Advance made for Capital Asset Work in Progress
-Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited (KPTL) 13 05 83 569 --
7  Cash and Cash Equivalents Total 130583 569 —
Balances with banks
Yes Bank Saving A/c 018694600001243 - 74 08 400
Yes Bank Current A/c 018685700000184 1390076 --
Total 13 90 076 74 08 400
8 Current Tax Assets (Net)
Total -- --
9 Other Current Assets
Share Capital Recievable from Gujarat Industiral Development Corp. - 26 00 000
Balances with Revenue Authorities receivable in Cash or kind
TDS receivable 42 481 --
GST receivable 3532 550 --
Total 35 75 031 26 00 000
10 Equity Share Capital
Authorised
22,50,00,000 (previous year -10,00,000) 225 00 00 000 1 00 00 000
equity shares of 10 each
225 00 00 000 1 00 00 000
Issued, subscribed
10,00,000 equity shares of 10 each, fully paid up 100 00 000 1 00 00 000
Total 100 00 000 1 00 00 000
Paid-up Capital:
10,00,000 equity shares of 10 each, fully paid up 100 00 000 --
Total 100 00 000 --
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Notes:
(i) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
At the beginning of the year - - - -]
Add: Issued during the year 10 00 000 1 00 00 000 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 10 00 000 1 00 00 000 - -
(ii)  Terms/rights attached to equity shares
- The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 10 per share.
- Each holder of the equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
- In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive assets of the Company
remaining after settlement of all liabilities. The distribution will be in proportion of the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.
(iii)  Allotment of Shares
-During the year company has alloted 10,00,000 numbers of Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each to below promoters:
-Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited (G-RIDE) 4,10,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each
-Maruti Suzuki India Limited (MSIL) 3,30,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each
-Gujarat Industrial Development Corporation (GIDC) 2,60,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each
(iv) The details of shareholders holding more than 5 % of issued share capital is set out below:
Name of Shareholder As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
410 000 41.00%
Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development
Corporation Limited (G-RIDE) - -
Maruti Suzuki India Limited (MSIL) 330000 33.00% - -
Gujarat Industrial Development Corporation
2 60 000 26.00%
(GIDC) - _
As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members, the above shareholding represents legal and
beneficial ownership of shares.
The Company has not issued any Bonus Shares during the year.
11  Other Equity
Retained Earnings
Opening Balance of retained earnings (16113935) -
Add/ Less Adjustments during the year - -
Net (Loss) / profit for the current year (21083 471) (16113935)
Closing Balance (37197 406) (16113935)
Total reserves and surplus (371 97 406) (16113935)
12  Share Application Money Pending for Allotment
Gujarat Industrial Development Corporation (GIDC) - 26 00 000
Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited (G-RIDE) - 41 00 000
Maruti Suzuki India Limited (MSIL) - 33 00 000
Total -- 100 00 000
13 Borrowings-Current
Short Term Borrowings
Loans and Advances From related parties-Unsecured
-Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited (G-RIDE) 14 31 27 855 -
Total 14 31 27 855 -
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14 Trade Payable-Current
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
Total outstanding dues of other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
AB Enterprise - 28 885
Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited 19256243 158 00661
Ashish C Doshi 6 600 N
Fortune Inn Haveli 5560 -
Total 192 68 403 158 29 546 I
The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to Trade Payables covered in Note 26
15 Provisions-Current
Accounting Fees Payable 277 875 135000
Consultancy / Professional Charges Payable 27 000 -
Conveyance Expenses (Lumsum) Payable 5400 -
Interest Payable 558712 --
Internal Audit Fees Payable 40 500 81 000
Man Power Service Exp Payable 130194 -
Statutory Audit Fees Payable 45 000 45 000
Vehice Hire Charges Payable 140580 =
Provision for Income Tax FY 18-19 - 2200
Total 12 25 261 2 63 200
16 Other current liabilities
Statutory Dues Payable 86 381 29 589
TDS Payable
Total 86 381 29 589
17  Current tax liabilities (net)
Total -- -
18 Other income
Interest Received 461 165 8 400
Tender Processing Fee 12 98 305 --
Total 17 59 470 8 400
19 Employee benefit expense, payment to contractors and consultants
Man Power Services 6 35003 29474
Total 6 35 003 29474
20 Finance Cost
Finance Cost -- --
Total --
21 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation -- --
Total
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23

24

Other expenses

Bank Charges

Board Meeting Exp

Consultancy / Professional Charges
Feasibility Study Expenses
Incorporation Exp

Interest on payment of TDS
Interest for Income tax

Office Exp

Office Exps(Preliminary Expenses)
ROC & legal charges

Round Off

Stationery & Printing Exp
Statutory Audit Fees

Traveling & Conveyance Exp-Others
Vehicle Hire Charges

Other Expenses includes:

*Auditors Remuneration:
Statutory Audit Fees
Total

59

24 481

13 54 597
2685718
1727

10

5099
17267 800
3

18 054
50 000
85765

7 14 625

15720550
315111

Total

22207938

16090661

50 000

50 000

Total

50 000

50 000

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
There are no component of other comprehensive income that are required or to be disclosed.

Earnings per share (‘EPS’)

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit/ (loss) attributable to the equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares of Rs.10 each outstanding during the year which is as under:

Particulars

2019-2020

2018-2019

Net Loss attributable to equity shareholders

(21083 471)

(161 13 935)

Weighted Avg. No. of equity shares held during the year* 597 260 --
Face value per share in¥ 10 10
Basic and diluted* Earning Per share -35.30 0.00
* There is no potential equity Shares so Basic and Diluted EPS are Same

Contingent liabilities and capital commitments

Particulars 2019-2020 2018-2019

Capital Commitment

25046 16 431

Total

25046 16 431
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25 SegmentiInformation

In accordance with Ind-As 108, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company's
Management to allocate resources to the segmentsand assesstheir performance.

The Board of Directors is collectively the Company's 'Chief Operating Decision Maker' or
'CODM'" within the meaning of Ind AS 108. The indicators used for internal reporting
purposes may evolve in connection with performance assessment measures putin place.

Information about geographical areas

The Company do not have any operations in economic environments with different set of
risks and returns. Hence, itis considered to be operating in a single geographical segment.

26 Duesto Micro, Smalland Medium Enterprises

There were no amounts payable to any Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises to whom the
company over dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 days as at March 31, 2020.

27 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior
management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior
management is supported by Finance Department that advises on financial risks and the
appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The Finance
department provides assurance to the Company's senior management that the Company's
financial risk activities are appropriately governed.

(a) Market Risk

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprises interest rate risk.
The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2020.
The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on; the carrying values
of gratuity and other postretirement obligations: provisions; and the non-financial assets
and liabilities.

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The borrowings of the Company
areinterest free and therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future
cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company's
objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and
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collacteral requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a
robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing including
loans from banks atan optimised cost.

(1) The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities

based on contractual undiscounted payments.

As at March 31, 2020 On demand |Less than 3 (3 to 12 months |1-5 years [More than |Total
months 5 years

Borrowings - --| 143127855 - - 14 31 27 855
Trade Payable -- -- 19268403 -- -- 19268 403
Other Financial Liabilities -- -- -- -- -- --
As at March 31, 2019

Trade Payable - - 15829546 - - 15829 546
Other Financial Liabilities - - - - - -

(c) CreditRisk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing
activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial
instruments.

(1) Trade Receivables

All outstanding customer receivables of the company are regularly monitored. This being
first year of operation of the company, company has not witnessed any bad debts or long
outstandins during the year. Furthermore, all outstanding customers receivables as on
reporting date are less than 6 months. Accordingly, trade receivables are subject to
extremely low credit risk and management has assessed that no impairment of trade
receivablesisrequired.

(ii) Financial Instruments and Cash Deposit

Credit risk from balances with bank and financial institutions is managed by the Company's
finance department under the supervision of company's senior management. All balances
with banks and financial institutions is subject to low credit risk due to good credit ratings
assigned to the Company. This being under the supervision of regulatory authority.
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Associate Entity

significant

ShriSantosh Kumar

ShriBajrang Warli

28 Related Party Disclosures

(I) Related Parties and the nature of relationship :

Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited (G-RIDE)
Gujarat Industrial Development Corpporation (GIDC)
Maruti Suzuki India Limited (MSIL)

Entities over which key management personnel and their relatives are able to exercise

GujaratRail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited (G-RIDE)

Key Management Personnel / Executive Director

Shri Ashwinikumar Yadav
Director Non-Executive

ShriZaigham AliKhan

ShriDharmesh Brahmbhatt
ShriBatchu Venugopal
ShriRaj Swarup Kapoor

(ii) Transactions with Related Parties

CEO/ Director
Chairman

Director (upto 14th August, 2019)
Director
Director (upto 14th February, 2020)

Director

Director

Summary of transactions /
Balances with Related Parties

Associate Entity

Entities over which key
management personnel and
their relatives are
able to exercise
significant influence

Key management
personnel and
relatives

Transactions during the year

For the year
ended March

For the year
ended March

For the year
ended March

For the year
ended March

For the year
ended March

For the year
ended March

31, 2020 31, 2019 31, 2020 31, 2019 31, 2020 31, 2019
Loan received 14 31 27 855 - -- - - -
Reim. of exp. (Capitalised-CWIP) 20000 - - - - -
Other expenses 26 85718 15480550 -- - - -
Interest Paid (Capitalised-CWIP) 620791 - - - - -
Total 146454 364 15480550 - - - -
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Balance as at
year end

Associate Entity

Entities over which key
management personnel
and their

relatives are able to exercise

significant influence

Key management personnel
and
relatives

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year
ended March

For the year
ended March

For the year
ended March

For the year
ended March

For the year
ended March

31,2019

31, 2020

31,2019

31, 2020

31,2019

Amount Receivable

Amount Payable 16 30 04 889

15800661

29 FairValue Measurements
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the
Company's financial instruments:
Category As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Carrying Value |Fair Value Carrying Value |Fair Value
1) Financial assets at Amortized Cost
Trade receivables (current / non current) -- -- -- --
Cash and Cash equivalents 1390076 1390076 74 08 400 74 08 400
Other financial asset (current / non current) -- -- -- --
Total 1390076 1390 076 74 08 400 74 08 400
2) Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Borrowings 14 3127 855|14 31 27 855 -- --
Trade payables 19268403| 19268403 158 29 546 158 29 546
Other financial liabilities (current/non current) -- --
Total 16 23 96 258| 16 23 96 258 15829 546 15829 546

of these instruments.

Fair Value Hierarchy

fairvalue measurementasawhole.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other thanin a
forced or liquidation sale. Management has assessed that trade receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, other bank balances, other financial assets, borrowings, trade payables and other
financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that has a significant effect on the
fair value measurement are observable, either directly or indirectly.
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liabilities.

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that has a significant effect on the
fairvalue measurementis not based on observable market data.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31,2020 :

Particulars Total Quoted Price [Significant [Significant
(Carrying in Active observable |unobservable
Value) Markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Trade receivables - - -- --
Cash and Cash equivalents 1390076 - -- --
Other financial asset (current/non current) - - -- --
Total 1390 076 -- -- --

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities as at March 31, 2020:

Particulars Total Quoted Price |Significant |Significant
(Carrying in Active observable [unobservable
Value) Markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 14 31 27 855 -- -- --
Trade Payables 19268 403 - -- --
Other financial Liabilities(current/non current) - - -- --
Total 16 23 96 258 - -- -

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2019:

Particulars Total Quoted Price |Significant |Significant
(Carrying in Active observable [unobservable
Value) Markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Trade receivables - -- -- --
Cash and Cash equivalents 74 08 400 -- -- --
Other financial asset (current/non current) -- -- -- --
Total 74 08 400 - - -
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Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities as at March 31, 2019:

Particulars Total Quoted Price [Significant  [Significant
(Carrying in Active observable |unobservable
Value) Markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost
Borrowings - -- - -
Trade Payables 158 29 546 - - -
Other financial Liabilities(current/non current) -- - - -

Total 158 29 546 - - -

30 Firsttimeadoptionofind AS

As stated in Note 3a. these financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020, are the
Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For the period
ended as at March 31, 2019 (first financial statements for the company), the Company had
prepared its financial statements in accordance with Accounting Standards notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other relevant provisions of the Act ('previous
GAAP')

Accordingly, the Company has prepared these financial statements which comply with Ind
AS applicable for year ended on March 31, 2020, together with the comparative period data
forthe year ended March 31, 2019. Further, in presenting the comparative information, the
Company has adjusted amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in
accordance with previous

GAARP. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its
financial statements prepared in accordance with previous GAAP, and how the transition
from previous GAAP to Ind As has affected the Company's financial position, financial
performance and cash flows.

The accounting policies set out in Note 2b have been applied in preparing these financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 including the comparative information for
the period ended March, 21, 2019.

Exemptions applicable and availed

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application
of certainrequirements under Ind AS.

Comparative periodi.e. December 13,2018 to March 31, 2019 was the first financial year of
the Company, hence transition date is not applicable on the Company. Accordingly, optional
exemptions and mandatory exceptions as specified in IND-AS 101 do not apply to the
Company and hence not disclosed.
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(a) Reconciliation of Equity as at:

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

Regrouped Indian GAAP Ind As adjustments

Ind AS

ASSETS

Non Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress

Deferred tax assets (net)

Current Assets

Financial assets

Cash & cash equivalents

74 08 400

74 08 400

Other Current Assets

26 00000

26 00 000

Bank balances other than those

included under cash and cash

equivalents

Total Assets

10008 400

10008 400

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Equity and Share Capital

Other Equity

(16113 935)

(16113 935)

Liabilities
Share Application Money Pending for Allotment 10000 000 - 1 00 00 000
Non Current Liabilities
Other financial liabilities -- -- --
Government Grant -- -- --
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities - -- --
Trade Payables -- -- --
-total outstanding dues of micro ent.
and small ent. -- - --
-total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro ent. and small ent. 15829 546 -- 15829546
Other financial liabilities -- -- --
Provisions 263200 - 2 63200
Other current liabilities 29 589 -- 29 589
Current tax liabilities (net) -- -- --
Total Equity and Liabilities 100 08 400 -- 100 08 400
(b) Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2019
Particulars Regrouped Indian GAAP | Ind As adjustments Ind AS
INCOME
Other Income 8400 -- 8400
Total Income 8 400 - -
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EXPENSES
Employee Benefit Exp 29 474 -- 29474
Depreciation and Amortisation exp -- -- --
Other Expenses 16090661 -- 16090661
Total Expenses 16120135 - 16120135

(Loss) / Profit Before Tax

(16111 735)

(16111 735)

Tax Expense

Current Tax 2200 - 2200
Deferred Tax Credit - - .
Total Tax Expense 2200 -- 2200

(Loss) / Profit for the year

(16113 935)

(16113 935)

Other Comprehensive Income (OCl) --

Items that will not be reclassified to

profit or loss -- -- --

Other Comprehensive Income for the

period -- -- --

Total Comprehensive Income for the

period (16113935) -- (16113 935)

31 CashFlow Statement

The transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS do not have a material impact on the statement of cash
flows.

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

32 The financial statements of the Company for the current year ended March 31, 2020 has been
prepared for the period of 12 months from April 01, 2019 to March 31, 2020. During the previous
period, being the first year of operations, the Company has prepared its first financial statments for the
period from December 13, 2018 to March 31, 2019. Therefore corresponding figures in the financial
statements are for a period of 3.5 months and are not strictly comparible with those of the current
year figures. Previous year's figures have been regrouped or reclassified wherever necessary to
conformto the current period's presentation.

33 Due to outbreak of COVID-19 globally and in India, the company's management has made initial
assessment of likely adverse impact on business and finacial risk, and believes that the impact to be
short term in nature. The management does not see any medium to long term risks in the company's
ability to continue as going concern and meeting its liability as and when they fall due.

Signatories to Note 1 to 33
As per our report of even date attached,
For Shah & Dalal
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 109432W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Membership No. 036776

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: July 04, 2020

DIN: 07854179

Place: Gandhinagar
Date: July 04, 2020

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
(Malay Dalal) (Santosh Kumar) (B. C. WARLI)
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